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INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS

U.S. judge rejects Uber’s driver expenses settlement
(Reuters) – A U.S. judge Aug. 18 rejected an attempt by Uber Technologies Inc. to 
settle a class-action lawsuit with drivers who claimed they were employees and  
entitled to expenses.

The suit said Uber drivers should be deemed employees and reimbursed 
for expenses such as gasoline and vehicle maintenance. An Uber car in 
California is shown here.

REUTERS/Lucy Nicholson

O’Connor et al. v. Uber Technologies Inc. et al.,  
No. 13-cv-3826; Yucesoy et al. v. Uber Technologies 
Inc. et al., No. 15-cv-262, 2016 WL 4398271 
(N.D. Cal. Aug. 18, 2016).

In a case that has been closely watched in Silicon 
Valley, where many companies use on-demand 
workers, U.S. District Judge Edward Chen in San 
Francisco ruled the settlement was not fair or 
adequate for Uber drivers.

Some drivers had objected to terms of the 
settlement valued at up to $100 million, which 
would have affected roughly 385,000 current and 
former drivers in California and Massachusetts.

Uber drivers contended in the lawsuit they 
should be deemed employees and reimbursed 
for expenses such as gasoline and vehicle 
maintenance. Those expenses are now borne by 
the drivers.

The proposed settlement would have kept  
drivers classified as independent contractors. 
Several drivers who were part of the class filed 
objections with the court, particularly because the 
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EXPERT ANALYSIS

The new overtime pay regulations:  
How should employers prepare?
By Andrew W. Volin, Esq. 
Sherman & Howard

The U.S. Department of Labor recently 
doubled the minimum weekly salary 
threshold under which salaried workers are 
eligible for overtime pay when they work 
more than 40 hours in a week. The regulatory 
changes to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 
29 U.S.C.A. §  201, will take effect Dec. 1,  
so companies should start preparing now.

The current threshold is $455 per week, 
or about $24,000 per year. That threshold 
will rise to $913 per week, or about $47,500 
annually. 

Understanding these new rules in context 
requires an awareness of wage-and-hour 
litigation.

Such cases often involve a policy or practice 
that applies to groups of employees and 
are brought as collective actions (similar to 
class actions) rather than individual claims.  
The burden of proof is on the employer to 
prove that employees are exempt from the 
federal overtime provisions. 

Double damages are presumptively 
available for violations of the overtime pay 
requirements, as are attorney fees — which 
often exceed the amount of wages in dispute. 

There are dozens of exempt jobs, but the new 
regulations impact only what are known as 
the “white-collar” exemptions for bona fide 
executive, administrative and professional 
employees. 

WHITE-COLLAR OVERTIME 
EXEMPTIONS 

There are three requirements for the white-
collar exemptions. 

First, the employee must perform the 
specific duties required for each particular 
exemption (i.e., executive, administrative 
and professional employees). Second, the 
employee must be paid on a salary basis. 
This means the employer pays the full salary 
for any week in which work is performed, 
regardless of the amount of work completed. 
Third, the salary amount must be at least the 
minimum required.

The new regulations change this final aspect 
of the exemption.

Which workers are affected?

Employers must first determine which 
workers are affected by the new regulations. 
This group primarily includes those who 
perform exempt duties and currently earn 
more than the old minimum but less than 
the new minimum threshold salary. 

The new regulations did not change the duties 
requirements to access if a worker is exempt 

Defense costs are significant as well. In 
addition, individual liability is possible for 
violations. For all these reasons, FLSA cases 
are expensive to defend and resolve.  

The number of FLSA lawsuits has risen 
dramatically in recent years. The DOL’s new 
overtime rules may lead to a further increase 
in claims, in light of the increased visibility 
of the rules and discussion among the 
workforce about compensation. 

BACKGROUND ON THE FLSA

The Fair Labor Standards Act is one of the 
oldest federal statutes impacting employees, 
and it covers almost all employers and 

Andrew W. Volin is a partner at Sherman & Howard in Denver. He 
advises companies in disputes involving employment discrimination, 
wrongful discharge and wage-and-hour law.

The U.S. Department of Labor recently doubled  
the minimum weekly salary threshold under  

which salaried workers are eligible for overtime pay  
when they work more than 40 hours in a week.

employees. In addition to requiring overtime 
pay for hours worked in excess of 40 hours  
per week, the statute requires employers 
to pay minimum wages and provide 
breastfeeding breaks. It also prohibits 
retaliation and pay discrimination based  
on gender, limits child labor, and creates 
record-keeping obligations. 

Although the FLSA creates a basic overtime 
pay requirement, it also exempts many 
categories of workers from this requirement. 



4  |  WESTLAW JOURNAL  n  EMPLOYMENT © 2016 Thomson Reuters

from the FLSA’s overtime-pay provisions. The 
duties tests are strictly applied based on the 
exemption involved.  

Executive 

To be considered an executive, an employee 
must meet the following criteria:

•	 The	 employee’s	 primary	 duty	 must	 be	
managing the enterprise or managing 
a customarily recognized department or 
subdivision of the enterprise.

•	 The	 employee	 must	 customarily	 and	
regularly direct the work of two or 
more other full-time employees or their 
equivalent.

•	 The	employee	must	have	 the	authority	
to hire or fire, or the employee’s 
suggestions and recommendations on 
hiring, firing, advancement, promotion 
or other change of status must be given 
particular weight.

Administrative

An administrative employee must meet the 
following criteria:

•	 The	 employee’s	 primary	 duty	 must	
be the performance of office or non-
manual work directly related to the 
management or general business 
operations of the employer or the 
employer’s customers.

•	 The	 employee’s	 primary	 duty	 must	
include the exercise of discretion and 
independent judgment with respect to 
matters of significance.

Professionals are divided into either learned 
(highly educated) or creative (artistic) 
sub-groups. 

Learned professional

A learned professional employee, which 
includes teachers and school administrative 
personnel, are characterized by the following 
duties:

•	 The	 employee’s	 primary	 duty	 must	
be the performance of work requiring 
advanced knowledge, defined as work 

that is predominantly intellectual in 
character and includes work requiring 
the consistent exercise of discretion and 
judgment.

•	 The	advanced	knowledge	must	be	 in	a	
field of science or learning; and 

•	 The	 advanced	 knowledge	 must	 be	
customarily acquired by a prolonged 
course of specialized intellectual 
instruction.

Creative professional

An employee is considered a creative 
professional when the employee’s primary 
duty is the performance of work requiring 
invention, imagination, originality or talent 
in a recognized field of artistic or creative 
endeavor.

EXCEPTIONS TO THE SALARY 
REQUIREMENTS

Certain types of professional workers are 
exempt even if they are not paid on a salary 
basis, or if they are paid on a salary basis that 
is below the minimum. For example, doctors 
and lawyers are exempt based merely on 
their duties, and so they are not impacted 
by the new regulations. Teachers and some 
educational administrators who are exempt 
as professionals also have special rules 
regarding their compensation.

Highly compensated employees 

There is also a separate exemption, which 
does not strictly apply the duties tests, 
for white-collar workers who earn at least 
$100,000 annually. The new regulations 
increase that annual requirement to more 
than $134,000. 

AUTOMATIC INCREASES

The new regulations also provide for 
automatic increases in the earnings 
threshold every three years, based on 
statistics about compensation for salaried 
workers. For example, the minimum salary 
will be based on the 40th percentile in the 
lowest-wage region in the United States. 
The annual earning threshold for highly 
compensated employees will be based on 
the 90th percentile nationally. 

Planning must take the future changes into 
account as well. Companies may want to 
switch their normal annual compensation 
changes to coincide with the date of 
the periodic automatic increases in the 
exemption threshold, Dec. 1.

HOW SHOULD COMPENSATION  
BE ADJUSTED?

Companies must decide how to adjust 
compensation for affected workers. Of 
course, total compensation can include a 
discussion of benefits, but just in terms of 
pay, employers have at least five options for 
most white-collar workers. 

In summary, the options are:

•	 Increase	the	salary	level	to	maintain	the	
exemption. As an example, an assistant 
manager might see their annual salary 
increased from $40,000 to $48,000. 
For most companies, only a lucky few 
should expect this outright raise. 

•	 Convert	the	salaried	worker	to	an	hourly	
worker, at a rate determined by dividing 
the current salary by 40 hours. For 
example, an employee who was earning 
$40,000 and worked 2,000 hours a 
year (40 hours x 50 weeks), might be 
converted to an hourly worker earning 
$20 per hour. If these employees work 
overtime, their overall compensation 
will rise. Accurate records of time 
worked are necessary to determine total 
compensation, for this option as well as 
the remaining ones. 

•	 Convert	 the	worker	 to	 hourly	 at	 a	 rate	
determined by dividing the current 
salary by total hours worked. If a worker 
earning $40,000 annually works  
50 hours per week, their new hourly 
rate will be $14.55. This new hourly 
rate, multiplied by 40 hours of straight 
time and 10 hours of overtime, will still 
result in the same total of $40,000 for 

The new overtime rules may lead to a further  
increase in the number of FLSA lawsuits, in light of  
the increased visibility of the rules and discussion  

among the workforce about compensation.

Salaried workers above the minimum

Employers must also consider workers who 
earn slightly more than the new minimum of 
$913 per week. The compensation changes 
could cause a “ripple effect” in which an 
increase to one worker’s compensation 
because of these new regulations could 
cause the employer to want to adjust the 
compensation of people earning slightly 
more.
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the year. When this approach is used, 
the hourly rate may vary each week 
depending on the number of hours 
worked. This method is more complex, 
but if it is applied correctly, it may 
provide the advantage of preserving 
current net compensation levels.  

•	 Convert	 the	 worker	 from	 salaried	
exempt to salaried nonexempt. In this 
situation, the worker has the same 
salary as before but still needs to track 
hours worked. Overtime pay is required 
for weeks with over 40 hours and is 
computed based on the salary divided 
by 40 hours. If the total weekly hours are 
40 or less, no additional pay is required.  

•	 Use	 a	 “fluctuating	 work	 week”	 salary	
for some workers. In this situation, the 
weekly salary is for all hours worked, 
including the straight time pay for any 
overtime hours. If overtime is worked, 
the employer has to pay only the 
additional half-time pay for the hours 
over 40 in a week. Special regulations 
govern this situation, and caution is 
required before adopting this approach. 

WHAT COUNTS TOWARD SALARY?

The new regulations add nondiscretionary 
bonuses and commissions considerations to 
compensation. Employers may count these 
toward up to 10 percent of the new minimum 
salary amount. However, there are special 
regulations about this as well. 

WHAT RISKS ARE INVOLVED?

As suggested above, companies must 
accurately record all time worked by workers 
who are moving from exempt to nonexempt 
status. This requires a system that includes 
developing and training all hourly workers 
on time tracking, including work that might 
be performed outside normal business hours 
and off premises. For example, responding 
to email and phone calls or messages counts 
as time worked under the FLSA. In some 

situations, being on call or traveling also 
counts as time worked. 

In addition to having robust tracking systems, 
companies should implement measures by 
which both workers and the company can 
verify hours worked. These measures are 
needed to minimize disputes. An internal 
complaint mechanism is also necessary. An 
employer may model the procedures after the 
current mechanisms in place under a variety 
of employment laws, such as harassment.

Also, management should expect the new 
requirements, and the necessary changes, to 
lead workers to discuss among themselves 
both the changes and their impact. Federal 
and state laws permit employees to discuss 
terms and conditions of employment, 
including compensation. 

Therefore, employers must consider com-
munication strategies to minimize morale 
problems (or worse) that might arise. For 
example, consider the challenges arising 
from workers being moved from salaried 
to hourly positions. Many people attach 
great importance to their status as salaried  
exempt workers.

In addition, depending on the new hourly 
approach used, formerly exempt workers who 
worked long hours (for example, 60 hours a 
week) may be quite surprised to learn their 
new hourly rate is lower than they expected.

Also, as workers compare notes about 
their old and new compensation, there is a 
risk that people in protected classes (race, 
color, religion, national origin, gender, age, 
disability, etc.) may conclude that their pay is 
unfair or discriminatory. 

These changes give management an 
opportunity to review all of their company’s 
payroll practices to minimize current and 
future risk. Now is the time to plan for these 
changes.  WJ

Workers affected by the new regulations primarily are those 
who perform exempt duties and currently earn more than the 

old minimum but less than the new minimum threshold salary.

Call your West representative for more information  
about our print and online subscription packages,  
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EXPERT ANALYSIS

California Fair Employment & Housing Council considers  
proposed rules to restrict employer use of criminal history
By Jennifer Mora, Esq. 
Littler Mendelson

In April 2012, the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission (EEOC) issued its 
long-awaited “Enforcement Guidance on 
the Consideration of Arrest and Conviction 
Records in Employment Decisions Under 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964” (2012 
Guidance). 

The updated guidance does not prohibit 
employers from using criminal records, 
but outlines what the EEOC considers 
recommended best practices, including a 
recommendation that employers, among 
other things:  

(1) remove from employment applications 
the question that asks job applicants to 
self-disclose their criminal record; 

(2) not make an employment decision 
based solely on the fact of an arrest 
record; and 

(3) conduct an “individualized assessment” 
before rejecting an applicant or 
terminating an employee because of a 
conviction.

Since that time, most legislation at the 
state and local level impacting employer 
use of criminal records has focused  
almost exclusively on “banning the box.” 
Specifically, numerous jurisdictions have 
implemented statutes and ordinances that 
require employers to remove the criminal 
history question from job applications and 
to wait until a later time, such as after an 
interview or a conditional offer (depending 

Jennifer Mora is a shareholder in the Los Angeles–Century City office of 
Littler Mendelson, where she regularly advises and defends employers 
and consumer reporting agencies on the intersection of federal and 
state background check laws, including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, 
the Fair Credit Reporting Act and state law equivalents. This expert 
analysis was first published Aug. 4 as an Insight article on the firm’s 
website. Reprinted with permission.

on the jurisdiction), to present the criminal 
question to job applicants.1

Earlier this year, however, the California Fair 
Employment & Housing Council (FEHC) 
issued proposed regulations that set out 
numerous ways in which employers can 
face liability when using a job applicant’s or 
employee’s criminal history in hiring and in 
making other employment decisions.  

In many ways, the proposed regulations 
borrow heavily from the EEOC’s 2012 
Guidance. Specifically, if adopted, the 
regulations will not outright prohibit a 
California employer from considering 
criminal information. 

Moreover, even though one’s status as an 
“ex-offender” is not considered a protected 
characteristic under California law or 
Title VII, the regulations, if adopted, will 
allow an applicant or employee to bring 

a discrimination claim if the employer’s 
use of conviction records results in an 
“adverse impact” (referred to by the EEOC 
as “disparate impact”) on those in protected 
classes, such as race, national origin and 
gender. 

The high points of the proposed regulations, 
originally released in March 2016 and recently 
amended in July 2016, are summarized 
below.  

Although this Insight does not delve deeply 
into related considerations, such as the 
interplay between the proposed regulations 
and the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), 
employers should continue to be mindful 
of their obligations under these laws when 
using criminal background reports provided 
by third-party consumer reporting agencies.2  

In addition, nationwide employers should 
continue to be mindful of so-called “ban the 
box” laws and the fair employment laws in 
some states that extend various protections 
to ex-offenders as “ex-offenders,” rather than 
as members of an otherwise protected class.

PROPOSED PROHIBITION  
ON CONSIDERING CERTAIN 
MARIJUANA CONVICTIONS

California currently prohibits employers  
from considering certain types of criminal 
records, including an arrest or a detention 
that did not result in a conviction, certain 
petty marijuana convictions and infractions 
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that are older than two years and convictions 
that have been sealed, judicially dismissed, 
expunged or statutorily eradicated by law. 
The FEHC proposes to expand this list 
to include any non-felony possession of 
marijuana conviction that is older than two 
years.

PROPOSED STANDARDS FOR 
PROVING ADVERSE IMPACT 
DISCRIMINATION

The regulations propose to prohibit an 
employer from considering criminal 
history in employment decisions if doing 
so would result in an adverse impact on 
individuals within a protected class. This 
theory of discrimination may result from the 
administration of a facially-neutral policy 
or procedure; specifically, criminal record 
screening policies that disproportionately 
affected members of protected classes.

According to the proposed regulations, a job 
applicant or employee will bear the threshold 
burden of proving that an employer’s criminal 
background screening policy has an adverse 
impact on a protected class.  

In establishing adverse impact, the 
applicant or employee can rely on state- or 
national-level statistics showing substantial 
disparities in the conviction records of one or 
more protected characteristics, unless there 
is a persuasive basis to expect a different 
result after accounting for any particularized 
circumstances, such as 

(1) the geographic area covering the 
applicant or employee pool, 

(2) the particular types of convictions being 
considered, or 

(3) the specific job at issue.  

If there is a persuasive basis to expect a 
different result after accounting for these 
circumstances, or if an applicant or employee 
presents evidence beyond statistics in the 
first instance, the regulations would allow 
the applicant or employee to establish 
adverse impact by presenting conviction 
statistics that address the particularized 
circumstances and show substantial 
disparities in the conviction records of one 
or more protected classes, or offering any  
other evidence that proves an adverse 
impact.

Similar to the defense of a disparate impact 
theory of liability under Title VII, the FEHC’s 
proposed regulations state that if a job 

applicant or employee can establish an 
adverse impact, the burden will shift to the 
employer to prove that its conviction policy 
is job-related and consistent with business 
necessity.  

In this regard, the employer will be required 
to show that its policy bears a “demonstrable 
relationship to successful performance on 
the job and in the workplace and measure 
the person’s fitness for the specific job, 
not merely to evaluate the person in the 
abstract.” 

The employer also will be required to 
establish that the policy or practice is 
appropriately tailored to the position at issue, 
taking into account certain factors, derived 
from Green v. Missouri Pacific Railroad, 
549 F.2d 1158 (8th Cir. 1975) (the centerpiece 
of the EEOC’s position for the past 25 years):

(1) the nature and gravity of the offense or 
conduct, 

(2) the time that has passed since the 
offense or conduct and/or completion 
of the sentence, and 

(3) the nature of the job held or sought.  

On this point, depending on whether the 
employer has a “bright-line” conviction 
disqualification rule or conducts an 
individualized assessment of the conviction, 
the proposed regulations set out in detail 
(not fully explained here) the ways in which 
an employer will be able to prove that a policy 
or practice of considering conviction history 
in employment decisions is appropriately 
tailored to the job at issue.  

Importantly, the FEHC proposes a rebuttable 
presumption that a policy is not sufficiently 
tailored to meet the job-related and 
consistent with business necessity affirmative 
defense if the employer has a bright-
line disqualification policy that includes 
convictions that are older than seven years 
(unless subject to an exemption described 
below). 

If an employer can meet its burden of 
proving that its policy or practice of 
considering conviction history is job-related 

and consistent with business necessity, the 
applicant or employee still may be able to 
prevail if he or she can demonstrate there is 
a less discriminatory policy or practice that 
serves the employer’s goals as effectively as 
the challenged policy or practice.

PROPOSED NOTICE REQUIREMENTS

Before an employer may take an adverse 
action (e.g., declining to hire, discharging, or 
declining to promote) against an applicant 
or employee based on conviction history, the 

The regulations would allow an applicant or employee to 
bring a discrimination claim if the employer’s use of conviction 

records results in an “adverse impact” on those in protected 
classes, such as race, national origin and gender.

regulations propose to require an employer to 
give the applicant or employee notice of the 
disqualifying conviction and provide him or 
her with a reasonable opportunity to present 
evidence that the conviction information is 
factually inaccurate.  

If the employee can demonstrate the record 
is factually inaccurate, the employer will not 
be permitted to consider the record. This 
notice is required regardless of whether the 
conviction history is derived from a third-
party background check report or some other 
source (e.g., the employer’s independent 
court records or internet research). This is 
different from the FCRA, which requires 
certain notices if the employer takes adverse 
action against an applicant or employee 
based, even in part, on information contained 
in a background check report.

PROPOSED EXEMPTIONS FOR 
CERTAIN REGULATED EMPLOYERS

The FEHC recognizes that some employers 
are subject to federal or state laws or 
regulations that (1) prohibit individuals with 
certain criminal records from holding certain 
positions or (2) mandate a screening process 
employers are required or permitted to 
utilize before employing individuals in such 
positions.  

The proposed regulations also note that 
some federal and state laws and regulations 
make criminal history a determining factor 
in eligibility for occupational licenses.  
In these situations, according to the FEHC, 
compliance with these laws or regulations 
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constitutes a defense to an adverse impact 
claim under California law.

PROPOSED INTENTIONAL 
DISCRIMINATION

The proposed regulations also address the 
non-controversial subject of intentional 
or “disparate treatment” discrimination. 
Specifically, the FEHC reiterates the long-

standing rule that it is unlawful for an 
employer to treat applicants or employees 
differently when considering conviction 
history if such treatment is substantially 
motivated by a protected characteristic.

NEXT STEPS FOR EMPLOYERS

The comment period for the amended version 
of the proposed regulations expired on  
July 22, 2016. The FEHC anticipates sending 

the proposed regulations in final form to the 
Office of Administrative Law by December 
2016. Final approval could come as early as 
February 2017, with the effective date set in 
the final version. 

In the meantime, employers that use or are 
considering using criminal records to screen 
applicants or employees should consider the 
following:

The employer will be required to show that its policy  
bears a “demonstrable relationship to successful  
performance on the job and in the workplace and  
measure the person’s fitness for the specific job,  

not merely to evaluate the person in the abstract.” 

•	 Employers	 should	 continue	 to	 be	
mindful of, and comply with, the various 
laws that impact the use of criminal 
records in addition to the California  
Fair Employment and Housing Act 
and Title VII, including state fair  
employment laws and the federal and 
state fair credit reporting laws, such as 
the FCRA.  WJ

NOTES
1 See Jennifer Mora, Philip Gordon and 
Matthew Curtin, Connecticut Becomes the Third 
Jurisdiction in 2016 to “Ban the Box”, Littler 
Insight (June 3, 2016); Jennifer Mora, Vermont 
Joins the Ranks of Cities and States that “Ban the 
Box, Littler Insight (May 10, 2016); Philip Gordon 
and Jennifer Mora, Austin Becomes the First City 
in Texas to “Ban the Box”, Littler Insight (Mar. 25, 
2016).

2 See Jennifer Mora, Federal Courts Increase 
Scrutiny of Employer Compliance with the FCRA’s 
Adverse Action Requirements, Littler Insight 
(Jan. 4, 2016); Rod Fliegel, Jennifer Mora, and 
William Simmons, The Swelling Tide of Fair Credit 
Reporting Act (FCRA) Class Actions: Practical 
Risk-Mitigating Measures for Employers, Littler 
Report (Aug. 1, 2014).

•	 Employers	that	want	to	assess	potential	
disparate/adverse impact risks should 
consider conducting a privileged review 
of their criminal record-based screening 
policies and procedures to help identify 
areas of opportunity in terms of 
fortifying the policies and procedures 
as defensible under California law, if the 
regulations are adopted, and Title VII.
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AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

Teacher can’t reconcile total disability benefits with ADA claims, 
appeals court says
By Tricia Gorman

A retired teacher’s Americans with Disabilities Act claims against Detroit Public Schools failed because she could  
not explain how she was qualified to fulfill her job while also seeking total disability Social Security benefits, a federal 
appeals court has ruled.

Stallings v. Detroit Public Schools, No. 15- 
2428, 2016 WL 4036405 (6th Cir. July 28, 
2016).

A 6th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals panel 
affirmed a lower court’s ruling in favor of 
the school system, finding that the plaintiff  
had not resolved the conflict between 
seeking disability accommodations and also 
claiming long-term disability.

“Plaintiff’s claims are foreclosed by her 
failure to explain the discrepancy between 
her application for disability benefits, which 
declares that she is incapable of working, 
and the contrary assertion implied in her 
discrimination claims — that she is capable 
of performing the essential functions of a 
classroom teacher,” the panel said.

The ADA, 42 U.S.C.A. §  12111(8), bars an 
employer from discriminating against a 
“qualified individual” based on a disability 
and defines the person as someone “who, 
with or without reasonable accommodation, 
can perform the essential functions of the 
employment position that such individual 
holds or desires.”

According to the panel’s opinion, Phyllis 
Stallings worked for Detroit Public Schools 
for more than a decade, primarily as a  
pre-kindergarten and kindergarten teacher.

After the 2012-2013 school year, she 
underwent total left knee replacement 
and requested leave under the Family and 
Medical Leave Act in August, saying she was 
still recovering.

Stallings’ FMLA form, however, contained 
conflicting information from her doctor, the 
opinion said.

The doctor said Stallings needed a four-
month leave but also included a note saying 
her return date was to be determined and 
that she needed a sit-down job outside the 
classroom, according to the opinion.

At the same time, Stallings was asking 
her supervisors for an assignment in a  
pre-kindergarten classroom, the opinion said.

DPS denied Stallings’ leave request Sept. 9,  
2013, saying the ADA did not require it to 
provide her a job outside the classroom.  
The school system instead offered Stallings 
a teacher’s aide and a classroom on the  
first floor.

According to the appellate opinion, Stallings 
interpreted DPS’ offer as an “ultimatum” that 
she must accept, resign or face termination. 
She refused and resigned the next day.

Eight days after her resignation, Stallings 
applied for total disability Social Security 
benefits, the opinion said.

She subsequently sued DPS in the U.S. 
District Court for the Eastern District of 
Michigan alleging violations of the ADA and 
state law for failure to accommodate her 
disability after surgery.

U.S. District Judge Victoria A. Roberts 
granted DPS’ motion for summary judgment, 
finding that Stallings had not shown that she 
was a qualified individual under the ADA. 

Stallings v. Detroit Pub. Schs., No. 14-cv-
13189, 2015 WL 6507398 (E.D. Mich. Oct. 28, 
2015).

“Whether she was to be in a pre-kindergarten 
class or a first grade classroom,” she was  
still a classroom teacher, Judge Roberts  
said. “Her doctor said she could not perform 
this job; her retirement papers said she  
could not perform this job; her Social Security 
application said she could not perform this 
job beginning in June 2013.”

On appeal, the 6th Circuit panel affirmed 
Judge Roberts’ ruling that Stallings had 
not shown she could perform the duties of a 
classroom teacher.

Stallings failed to resolve the conflict 
between her application for Social Security 
benefits that said she was incapable of 
working and her ADA claims that suggested 
she was capable of teaching after a brief 
leave, the panel said.

The panel also said Stallings’ requested 
accommodation, placement in a pre-kinder-
garten classroom, may not be considered 
reasonable because she did not explain  
how this assignment would mitigate her 
disability.

“Plaintiff is not entitled to reassignment 
merely because pre-kindergarten is more 
consistent with her professional expertise,” 
the panel said. “The ADA affords Stallings 
only a reasonable accommodation — not  
the accommodation of her choice.”  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 4036405

See Document Section A (P. 27) for the opinion.
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AGE DISCRIMINATION

Pulitzer Prize-winning reporter accuses L.A. Times  
of age discrimination
By Tricia Gorman

A former L.A. Times reporter who won a Pulitzer Prize and other awards for a series of investigative articles says the 
paper demoted him because of his age and in retaliation for questioning its use of the awards money.

request for an investigative position even 
though two other reporters subsequently 
were given the title of investigative reporter.

Gottlieb’s manager instead assigned him 
to Orange County, where he had started his 
career, the suit says.

Following the email about the award money, 
the paper retaliated further by temporarily 
demoting him and assigning him to write 
obituaries — considered a novice job,  
Gottlieb says.

Gottlieb further alleges that the paper 
retaliated against him again in 2015 for 
taking a seven-and-a-half-week leave  
for prostate cancer surgery, in violation of  
the California Family Rights Act.

When Gottlieb returned from leave in April 
2015, he was again assigned to obituary 
writing, the suit says. This demotion finally 
forced him to quit. 

Gottlieb alleges that the newspaper’s actions 
have resulted in lost past and future earnings, 
damage to his career, psychological and 
emotional distress, and humiliation.

He says the defendants violated the  
California Fair Employment and Housing 
Act, Cal. Gov’t Code § 12940, by discharging 
employees who are 40 or older more 
frequently than younger employees, hiring 
few workers over 40 and giving better 
assignments to younger employees.

The suit includes a claim under the state’s 
whistleblower protection law for the 
retaliatory actions the defendants allegedly 
took after Gottlieb complained about the  
award money handling.

Gottlieb seeks unspecified damages against 
Los Angeles Times Communications LLC, 
Maharaj and other unnamed individuals.  WJ

Attorneys:
Plaintiff: Carney R. Shegerian and Anthony Nguyen, 
Shegerian & Associates Inc., Santa Monica, CA

Related Court Document: 
Complaint: 2016 WL 4204125The plaintiff worked for the L.A. Times, shown here, for 18 years in several positions, including senior writer. REUTERS/Lucy Nicholson

Gottlieb v. Los Angeles Times Communications 
LLC et al., No. BC630018, complaint filed 
(Cal. Super. Ct., L.A. Cty. Aug. 9, 2016).

Jeffrey Gottlieb, 62, says he was not assigned 
another investigative article after winning the 
awards and was given “substantially inferior” 
work when he returned from a medical leave.

Gottlieb resigned in April 2015, saying he felt 
forced to quit by the newspaper’s retaliatory 
and discriminatory actions that created a 
hostile work environment.

His suit, filed Aug. 9 in the Los Angeles 
County Superior Court, includes claims under 
the state’s Fair Employment and Housing Act 
and the Labor Code.

According to the complaint, Gottlieb worked 
for the L.A. Times for 18 years in several 
positions, including senior writer.

He and another reporter wrote a series of 
more than 100 articles about corruption in  
the city of Bell, California. They received 
national recognition for their writing, 
including a 2011 Pulitzer Prize and other 
awards, the suit says.

One of the awards, the Selden Ring Award 
for Investigative Reporting, given by the 
University of Southern California, came with 
a $35,000 check for the writers, editors and 
other staff members responsible for the 
articles, according to the complaint.

Gottlieb says that two years after the award 
ceremony was held, the paper still had not 
fully distributed the money. He emailed the 
paper’s publisher and president in May 2013 
to inquire about it, the suit says. 

His allegations that the newspaper had 
illegally kept the Selden Ring money and 
money associated with another award 
became news and appeared in an article in 
the Washington Post, the suit says.

Gottlieb’s manager told him that his email 
“caused quite an uproar,” the suit says. 

Because of the bad press, the paper’s 
managing editor, Davan Maharaj, stopped 
talking to Gottlieb, according to the 
complaint.

Gottlieb alleges that after receiving the 
awards, his managing editor refused his 
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GENDER DISCRIMINATION

7th Circuit says Title VII does not apply to gay workers
(Reuters) – A federal appeals court July 28 said existing employment discrimination law does not apply to gay and  
lesbian workers, but that denying those protections had become indefensible amid a massive societal shift favoring 
LGBT rights.

Statement on the 7th Circuit decision by the Human Rights Campaign, which says it is the 
nation’s largest lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and queer civil rights organization:

“We are deeply disappointed in the 7th Circuit Court’s decision failing to join the growing 
consensus that existing civil rights law must reasonably be interpreted to include non-
discrimination protections based on sexual orientation. While the court made its decision 
based on what it viewed as precedent, it did make clear however that there is no coherent 
basis for excluding sexual orientation from other types of sex discrimination claims.  
The court’s decision makes the need even more urgent for Congress to pass the Equality 
Act, making explicitly and permanently clear that LGBTQ people are protected under our 
nation’s civil rights laws.”

— HRC Legal Director Sarah Warbelow 

Hively v. Ivy Tech Community College,  
South Bend, No. 15-1720, 2016 WL 4039703 
(7th Cir. July 28, 2016).

A unanimous three-judge panel of the  
7th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals said  
Congress in enacting Title VII of the Civil  
Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C.A. §  2000e,  
did not contemplate whether the law’s 
prohibition on sex bias applied to gay people 
and has rejected recent attempts to amend 
the law to include them.

But continuing to allow gay workers to be 
harassed or fired because of their sexual 
orientation, the court said, was out of line 
with the rationale behind the U.S. Supreme 
Court’s 2015 Obergefell v. Hodges, 135 S. 
Ct. 2584 (2015), ruling that struck down 
state bans on gay marriage and a series of 
decisions from federal judges and appeals 
courts applying Title VII to transgender 
people.

“It seems unlikely that our society can 
continue to condone a legal structure in 
which employees can be fired, harassed, 
demeaned ... and otherwise discriminated 
against solely based on who they date, love, 
or marry,” Circuit Judge Ilana Rovner wrote.

At least 10 federal appeals courts have 
declined to apply Title VII to gay people, and 
none have gone the other way.

The appellate decision upheld the dismissal 
of a 2014 lawsuit by Kimberly Hively, a  
former adjunct professor at Ivy Tech 
Community College in Indiana, who says  

her contract was not renewed when 
supervisors learned she is gay.

Gregory Nevins of LGBT rights group 
Lambda Legal, who represents Hively, did not 
immediately return a request for comment. 
Nor did Ivy Tech’s lawyers at Barnes and 
Thornburg.

The 7th Circuit has ruled at least six times 
since 1984 that Title VII does not apply to 
gay people. But at oral arguments in Hively’s 
case in September, Judge Rovner made 
clear that she believed times had changed, 
saying it was “incongruous” to guarantee a 
right to marry but not to be protected from 
discrimination.

The appellate panel also included Circuit 
Judges William Bauer and Kenneth Ripple.

Hively’s case and similar appeals pending 
in the 2nd and 11th circuits are key pieces 
of a strategy by some LGBT groups to 

win expanded rights in federal courts. 
Christiansen v. Omnicom Grp. Inc., No. 16-
748, amicus briefs filed (2d Cir. June 28, 
June 30 and July 5, 2016); Evans v. Ga. 
Reg’l Hosp., No. 15-15234, appellant’s brief 
filed (11th Cir. Jan. 7, 2016). About 20 states 
have adopted laws to prohibit workplace 
discrimination on the basis of sexual 
orientation, but efforts in other states have 
stalled and the Republican-controlled 
Congress has refused to consider a federal 
proposal.  WJ

(Reporting by Daniel Wiessner)

Attorneys:
Plaintiff-appellant: Gregory R. Nevins, Lambda 
Legal Defense & Education Fund, Atlanta, GA

Defendant-appellee: Adam Lee Bartrom and 
Jason T. Clagg, Barnes & Thornburg LLP, 
Fort Wayne, IN; John Robert Maley, Barnes & 
Thornburg LLP, Indianapolis, IN

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 4039703
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DISCRIMINATION

U.S. judge says funeral home had religious 
right to fire transgender worker
(Reuters) – A federal judge ruled Aug. 18 that a Detroit funeral home that  
“operates as a ministry” was exempt from a law protecting transgender  
employees because of its owner’s Christian beliefs.

Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission v. R.G. & G.R. Harris Funeral 
Homes Inc., No. 14-cv-13710, 2016 WL 
4396083 (E.D. Mich. Aug. 18, 2016).

U.S. District Judge Sean Cox dismissed a 
2014 lawsuit by the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission that said RG & GR 
Harris Funeral Homes Inc. unlawfully fired 
funeral director Aimee Stephens when she 
told her bosses she would transition from 
male to female. It was one of the agency’s 
first lawsuits on behalf of a transgender 
worker.

Following milestone achievements in gay 
rights including same-sex marriage becoming 
legal nationwide in 2015, transgender rights 
have become an increasingly contentious 
issue in the United States.

The EEOC said Harris violated Title VII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C.A. § 2000e, 
which prohibits employment discrimination 
on the basis of gender stereotyping.  
Harris said it had a religious right to fire 
Stephens and that she was also biologically 
male and violated a dress code requiring 
men to wear suits.

Judge Cox agreed with Harris on both points. 
The company’s owner, Thomas Rost, is a 
devout Christian whose life’s work stems 
from his religious beliefs, including that 
shunning one’s biological sex is an affront to 
God, the judge wrote.

“Rost operates the funeral home as a ministry 
to serve grieving families while they endure 
some of the most difficult and trying times in 
their lives,” Judge Cox wrote.

An EEOC spokeswoman said: “We are 
disappointed with the decision and reviewing 
next steps.”

Douglas Wardlow of the Alliance Defending 
Freedom, a Christian legal group 
representing the funeral home, applauded 
the ruling, saying in a statement: “The feds 
shouldn’t strong-arm private business 
owners into violating their religious beliefs, 
and the court has affirmed that here,”

Judge Cox based his ruling largely on a 2014 
U.S. Supreme Court decision that granted 
craft-store chain Hobby Lobby a religious 
exemption from providing employees with 
insurance coverage for contraception. 
Burwell v. Hobby Lobby Stores Inc., 134 S. Ct. 
2751 (2014). But Justice Samuel Alito, writing 
for the court in that case, said the ruling 
did not necessarily apply to cases involving 
discrimination.

Several U.S. appeals courts have held that 
federal law prohibiting gender bias applies 
to transgender people, but none have 
addressed the issue of religious freedom in 
those cases.

Jillian Weiss, executive director of the 
Transgender Legal Defense and Education 
Fund, which was not involved in the funeral 
home case, said that under Cox’s decision: 
“People could be forced to conform 
to outmoded masculine and feminine 
stereotypes in order to keep their jobs.”  WJ

(Reporting by Daniel Wiessner)

Attorneys:
Plaintiff: Miles Shultz and Dale R. Price Jr., U.S. 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, 
Detroit, MI

Defendant: Douglas G. Wardlow, James A. 
Campbell, Jonathan C. Dalton and Joseph 
Paul Infranco, Alliance Defending Freedom, 
Scottsdale, AZ; Joel J. Kirkpatrick, Kirkpatrick 
Law Offices, Plymouth, MI

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 4396083
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COMPUTER CRIME

Oregon high court sides with store clerk who used  
work computer to steal lottery tickets
By Daniel E. Ostrach

Oregon’s highest court has ruled that a convenience store clerk who stole lottery tickets by printing them from the 
store’s computer did not access the computer “without authorization” under the state’s computer crime statute.

State v. Nascimento, No. CA A147290,  
2016 WL 3960523 (Or. July 21, 2016).

The Oregon Supreme Court rejected the 
state’s argument that “an employee’s 
authorized use of an employer’s computer 
becomes ‘without authorization’ for purposes 
of [the statute] simply because the employee 
used the computer for a purpose not 
permitted by the employer’s personnel or 
computer use policies.”

Though the impermissible use may lead 
to personnel actions, discipline or other 
proceedings, it is not a violation of Oregon’s 
computer crime statute, Or. Rev. Stat. 
§ 164.377(4), the high court said. 

INVESTIGATION INTO LOTTERY 
TICKETS

According to the opinion, Caryn Nascimento 
was hired as a deli clerk at a Tiger Mart 
convenience store in Madras, Oregon, in 
2007 and was trained to use the cash register 
and lottery terminal.

Employees were trained to collect customers’ 
payments for lottery tickets and to put the 
payments in the cash register before using 
the lottery terminal to dispense any tickets, 
the opinion said.

The vice president of Tiger Mart’s parent 
company conducted an investigation  
relating to the sale of lottery tickets in 
February 2009, when he determined both 
that a surprisingly large number of lottery 
tickets had been sold and that the store  
was short thousands of dollars, according to 
the opinion.

The vice president suspected that 
Nascimento had been using the computer to 
print lottery tickets for herself, without paying 
for them, the opinion said.

CRIMINAL CHARGES

Nascimento was charged with violating 
the computer crime law, which makes it a 
crime to use, access or attempt to access a 
computer or computer network “without 
authorization,” according to the opinion.

At trial, after the state had presented its  
case, Nascimento moved for acquittal.  
She argued the prosecution had not shown 
she had used the lottery terminal “without 
authorization,” and cited evidence that 
deli clerks were allowed to use the lottery 
terminal, the opinion said.The prosecutor 
agreed that Nascimento had “authority 
[to] operate the machine to sell tickets and 
conduct the business of Tiger Mart,” but 
countered that Nascimento’s use of the 
lottery terminal was “unauthorized” because 
she used it for the purpose of committing 
theft.

The trial court denied the Nascimento’s 
motion and instructed the jury that it  
needed to find that Nascimento used or 
accessed the lottery computer without 
authorization.

Nascimento was convicted of computer 
crime, and she appealed, arguing the 
evidence did not support a conviction  
under subsection (4) of the computer crime 
statute, which relates only to unauthorized 
access of a computer.

The state Court of Appeals affirmed the 
conviction, finding that Nascimento’s 
authorization to use the lottery terminal 
was conditional on complying with her job 
requirements.

PURPOSE OR MANNER OF USE  
NOT RELEVANT

On appeal, the Oregon Supreme Court 
reversed the conviction. It found that 
Nascimento’s use of the lottery terminal to 
print tickets for herself, which she did not pay 
for, was not a crime under subsection (4) of 
the statute because she was an authorized 
user.

Citing dictionary definitions, the court said to 
“authorize” means, among other things, to 
be “empowered” or “permitted.” The court 
found that the “actual use” Nascimento made 
of the lottery terminal, to print lottery tickets, 
was a use “authorized” by her employer.

According to the court, the text of Section 
164.377(4) distinguishes only between people 
authorized to access or use a computer and 
people who cannot; it does not focus on the 
purpose or manner of use at all.  WJ

Attorneys:
Petitioner: Deputy Public Defender Daniel C. 
Bennett and Chief Defender Ernest G. Lannet, 
Office of Public Defense Services, Salem, OR

Respondent: Assistant Attorney General 
Patrick M. Ebbett, Attorney General Ellen F. 
Rosenblum and Solicitor General Anna Joyce, 
Office of the Attorney General, Salem, OR

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 3960523

See Document Section B (P. 32) for the opinion.
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WAGE AND HOUR

Judge denies class for Wells Fargo New York employees  
in overtime suit
By Tricia Gorman

Former Wells Fargo employees who worked in New York cannot proceed as a statewide class in a suit accusing the bank of 
failing to pay workers overtime because of the varying circumstances of each worker, a California federal judge has ruled.

REUTERS/Rick Wilking

Perez et al. v. Wells Fargo & Co. et al., No. 14-cv-989, 2016 WL 4180190 
(N.D. Cal. Aug. 8, 2016).

The plaintiffs failed to meet the requirement for class certification 
under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23 that common questions 
predominate over individual issues, according to U.S. District Judge 
Phyllis J. Hamilton of the Northern District of California.

“The court finds that in view of the numerous individualized inquiries 
that would be required in order to resolve the claims of the New York 
plaintiffs, a class action cannot be regarded as a superior means of 
resolving this dispute,” the judge said.

FEDERAL AND STATE WAGE CLAIMS

Eleven former employees sued Wells Fargo & Co., Wachovia Bank NA 
and various related entities in March 2014, alleging the companies 
failed to pay overtime and failed to provide rest and meal breaks. 
Wachovia merged with Wells Fargo in December 2008.

A third amended complaint filed in California federal court in May 
2015 included individual and class claims under the federal Fair Labor 
Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S.C.A. §  201, and state labor laws of 
California, Texas and New York.

In April, six plaintiffs who worked for the bank in New York filed a 
motion for certification of a statewide class of nonexempt workers who  
worked for the defendants since 2008 without overtime compensation. 

They alleged the defendants violated New York law by not paying 
workers overtime when they took only brief breaks of less than  
20 minutes and worked 40 hours or more in a week.

According to Judge Hamilton’s order, New York Labor Law, N.Y. Lab. 
Law §§  190 and 191 incorporates the U.S. Department of Labor’s 
interpretive guidance for breaks under the FLSA, 29 C.F.R. § 785.18, 
which says:

Rest periods of short duration, running from 5 minutes to about 
20 minutes, are common in the industry. They promote the 
efficiency of the employee and are customarily paid for as working 
time. They must be counted as hours worked. 

This provision requires employers to pay nonexempt workers for these 
shorter, non-meal breaks, the New York plaintiffs said.

The defendants argued that the workers are not paid for any time when 
they clock out of work.

Judge Hamilton found that the plaintiffs had met the four basic 
elements for class certification under Rule 23(a): numerosity, 
commonality, typicality and adequacy.

There are common questions among the class of hundreds of proposed 
members, the judge said, since evidence shows that Wells Fargo had 
“a policy and practice” of not paying for any recorded breaks.

Plaintiff Sona Anand showed that her claims are typical of the other 
employees and that she could adequately represent the class since she 
allegedly sustained the same injury asserted on behalf of all proposed 
class members, the judge said.

However, despite showing that questions and issues exist that are 
common among the proposed class members, the plaintiffs failed to 
show that those common elements predominate over individual issues, 
Judge Hamilton said. As a result they did not meet the certification 
requirement of Rule 23(b)(3).

The judge agreed with the defendants’ contention that the claims 
require individual inquiries into each plaintiff’s circumstances.

There are various reasons why workers may have taken those shorter 
breaks, according to the judge’s order.

To establish the defendants’ liability for each class member, it is 
necessary to determine the purpose for each worker’s short break and 
how they used the time, Judge Hamilton said.

“The federal DOL has made clear that determining whether a work break 
is a ‘bona fide meal period’ that may be excluded from compensable 
time is a fact-bound inquiry for which the length of the break is merely 
one factor,” she said.

Some of the breaks that the plaintiffs are challenging may actually be 
meal breaks that are not compensable or some of the proposed class 
members may be sales or executive employees who are exempt from 
overtime provisions, according to the order.

“There remain individual claims under the same New York laws, as 
well as individual FLSA and California claims, which militate against a 
finding that a class action would be a superior means of resolving the 
case,” Judge Hamilton concluded.  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Order: 2016 WL 4180190
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NON-COMPETE AGREEMENTS

Non-compete unrelated to business needs unenforceable,  
4th Circuit holds
By Daniel Rice

A non-competition agreement barring an employee from directly or indirectly participating in a similar business in the 
same geographical area is too broad to enforce under North Carolina law, the 4th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals has held.

RLM Communications Inc. v. Tuschen et al., 
No. 14-2351, 2016 WL 4039679 (4th Cir. 
July 28, 2016).

In a July 28 opinion, the 4th Circuit affirmed 
a North Carolina federal court’s decision to 
grant summary judgment against claims 
brought by RLM Communications Inc. 
against former employee Amy E. Tuschen 
and her new employer. RLM Commc’ns 
Inc. v. Tuschen, 66 F. Supp. 3d 681 (E.D.N.C. 
Nov. 7, 2014).

RLM, a North Carolina government 
contractor specializing in information 
services and security, sued Tuschen after she 
left RLM to join a competing firm in 2013. 
Tuschen had managed a contract for RLM 
to provide information security services to 
the federal government, according to the 4th 
Circuit’s opinion.

Tuschen’s new employer, eScience and 
Technology Solutions Inc., submitted a bid 
to assume the government contract when 
it expired in 2014, the opinion said. Tuschen 
was tasked with helping eScience develop a 
bid for the contract, according to the opinion.

Tuschen also recruited RLM employees 
to join her new firm if it was successful in 
securing the contract, the opinion said.

RLM sued Tuschen and eScience on multiple 
claims, including breach of non-competition 
and confidentiality agreements and 
misappropriation of trade secrets.

The U.S. District Court for the Eastern 
District of North Carolina granted Tuschen’s  
motion for summary judgment on all claims 

against her, and the 4th Circuit affirmed in its 
recent decision.

NON-COMPETE TOO BROAD

RLM alleged that Tuschen had violated the 
terms of a non-competition agreement 
that she signed when she began her first 
day of work, the appellate opinion said.  
The agreement provided in part that  
Tuschen would not “directly or indirectly 
participate in a business that is similar to a 
business now or later operated by [RLM],” 
according to the opinion.

The 4th Circuit evaluated the agreement 
under North Carolina common law, which 
the court said does not allow enforcement 
of non-competition agreements that 
are broader than necessary to serve an 
employer’s legitimate business needs.

According to the three-judge appellate 
panel, the non-compete that Tuschen 
signed was “largely unmoored from RLM’s 
legitimate business interests.”

The prohibition against direct or indirect 
participation of any type in a competing 
business impermissibly prevented Tuschen 
from working in any capacity for a competitor, 
not just in a capacity similar to the role  
she held at RLM, the appeals court said.

“Tuschen is not merely prohibited from 
working for RLM’s competitors in a position 
like the one she held at RLM,” the opinion 
said. “She may also not mow their lawns, 
cater their business lunches and serve as 
their realtor.”

The appeals court held that RLM could not 
enforce the non-compete, illustrating the 
scrutiny that courts give to such covenants.

RELATED CLAIMS DISMISSED

The 4th Circuit also affirmed summary 
judgment on RLM’s other claims connected 
to Tuschen’s departure for a competing 
firm, including allegations she violated a 
confidentiality agreement’s prohibition 
against the copying or removal of confidential 
information, except in the performance of her 
job duties.

RLM alleged that Tuschen breached the 
agreement and misappropriated trade 
secrets when she copied files from a company 
laptop onto a CD to give to her successor,  
the opinion said.

The court rejected RLM’s claims after 
concluding that Tuschen had made the  
CD as part of her job. Tuschen left the CD  
with RLM to help her successor transition into 
the job, according to the appellate opinion.

RLM did not produce evidence that  
Tuschen used confidential information or 
trade secrets from the laptop at her new job, 
the appellate panel said.  WJ

Attorneys:
Appellant: R. Jonathan Charleston, The Charleston 
Group, Fayetteville, NC; Coy E. Brewer, Jr., 
Fayetteville, NC

Appellees: Michael Coghlan Lord, Williams Mullen, 
Raleigh, NC

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 4039679
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BACKGROUND CHECKS

Judge tosses lawsuit over Time Warner  
Cable background checks
(Reuters) – A federal judge has dismissed for lack of standing a proposed  
class action against Time Warner Cable brought by a Wisconsin man who  
admitted to threatening lawsuits against dozens of companies who performed  
background checks on him.

 REUTERS/Mike Segar

Groshek v. Time Warner Cable Inc., No. 15- 
cv-157, 2016 WL 4203506 (E.D. Wis. Aug. 9,  
2016).

In a decision Aug. 9, U.S. District Judge 
Pamela Pepper said the man, Cory 
Groshek, suffered no concrete harm from 
the background check Time Warner ran.  
The plaintiff had alleged a statutory  
violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 
15 U.S.C.A. §  1681, on the grounds that the 
wrong type of disclosure form was used.

Pepper agreed with Time Warner’s lawyers 
that the U.S. Supreme Court’s May decision 
in Spokeo Inc. v. Robins, 136 S. Ct. 1540 
(2016), made clear plaintiffs cannot sue for 
“bare procedural violations” of the FCRA if 
they did not suffer a concrete injury.

Accused by Time Warner lawyers of 
intentionally triggering FCRA violations, 
Groshek netted $230,000 in settlements 
over a one-year period. His strategy was  
to apply for jobs, triggering background 
checks, and then threaten lawsuits over 
those checks, Time Warner’s lawyers said in 
a motion to dismiss in May.

Among the companies Groshek threatened 
with litigation were Starbucks, Target Corp, 
Pitney Bowes, Sherwin-Williams and Lands 
End, Time Warner’s lawyers said.

Lawyers for Groshek and Time Warner did 
not immediately respond to requests for 
comment.

In an emailed message, Groshek said he 
believes the judge’s decision does “enormous 
damage” to the rights of job applicants not 
to have background and credit checks run on 
them in violation of federal law.

In a brief in June opposing dismissal, lawyers 
for Groshek said Time Warner decided to 
“attack and vilify Groshek” to avoid the 
real issue — its own violations of the law. 
Over a recent five-year period, Time Warner  
violated the act about 70,000 times by not 
using the proper documents before doing 
background checks, Groshek’s lawyers said.

The FCRA requires employers to disclose 
background checks with a standalone 
document, but Time Warner’s form had 
extraneous information, including a liability 
waiver, Groshek alleged in his lawsuit, filed 
last year.

Groshek’s lawyers also rejected Time 
Warner’s argument that its form was a 
mere “technical violation” of the FCRA.  
An employee’s right to a standalone 
disclosure form is a critical provision of 
the act, added by Congress in a 1996 
amendment, Groshek’s lawyers said.

One of the core federal laws guaranteeing 
consumer rights, the FCRA requires 
companies to get written permission before 
using credit report information, explaining 
how the information will be used and  
giving individuals a chance to dispute 
information in a report.

In court filings, Groshek argued he was 
injured because Time Warner invaded his 
privacy without lawfully getting permission. 
Stopping such conduct by employers was 
one of the main motivations for passing  
the FCRA in 1970, Groshek’s lawyers said.

Judge Pepper, however, said that argument 
did not suffice. Groshek “has not alleged 
that the defendant released the information 
in the report to other people” or used  
the report against him in any way, Judge 
Pepper said. “In short, he has not alleged a 
concrete harm,” she said.  WJ

(Reporting by Dena Aubin)

Related Court Document: 
Order: 2016 WL 4203506

See Document Section C (P. 40) for the order.
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INSURANCE

RV company, execs not covered  
for ex-CEO’s defamation claims
By Thomas Parry

Cincinnati Insurance Co. owes no defense to a recreational vehicle technology 
company and its top executives against claims that they wrongfully terminated 
and defamed a former chief executive officer, an Indianapolis federal judge 
has ruled.

Cincinnati Insurance Co. v. Global Caravan 
Technologies Inc. et al., No. 14-cv-1643, 
2016 WL 4194520 (S.D. Ind. Aug. 8, 2016).

U.S. District Judge Tanya Walton Pratt 
of the Southern District of Indiana found 
that an “employment-related practices” 
exclusion in Global Caravan Technologies 
Inc.’s commercial general liability policy 
barred coverage for ex-CEO Charles Hoefer’s 
allegations.

Despite Hoefer’s description of Global 
Caravan’s directors as “conspirators” rather 
than employees or executives, the defamation 
of Hoefer arose from his employment with 
Global Caravan, Judge Pratt said.

“As pled, there can be no other interpretation 
of the alleged defamation other than pursuant 
to the business relationship,” she wrote.

CEO OUSTED

Hoefer filed his wrongful-termination 
lawsuit in Indiana state court against Global 
Caravan, and its board of directors, including 
Husheng Ding, Christopher Douglas and Kyle 
Fang shortly after he was voted out as CEO, 
the Judge Pratt’s opinion said.

Ding, Douglas and Fang allegedly had 
conspired to remove him from the company 
when Ding began seeking investment deals 
in China and strained relationships within the 
company.

Cincinnati offered a defense under a 
reservation of rights, the opinion said.

Hoeger later amended his complaint, adding 
allegations that they had defamed him 
by spreading rumors that he had stolen 
intellectual property and was a liar.

The insurer then filed a declaratory judgment 
action in the Southern District of Indiana, 
seeking a ruling that it owed no coverage 
against Hoefer’s suit.

Both sides moved for summary judgment.

‘EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES’

Judge Pratt found that Cincinnati did not 
owe the board members a defense against 
Hoefer’s claims.

The judge acknowledged that Hoefer’s claims 
fell within the policy coverage for personal 
and advertising injury which included “[o]
ral or written publication, in any manner, of 
material that slanders or libels a person.”

Hoefer’s suit alleged that the defendants had 
spread “professionally brutal” defamatory 
statements about him to individuals and the 
press, she noted.

However, the CGL policy provided an 
exclusion which precluded coverage for 
“employment-related practices … including …  
criticism, demotion, evaluation, failure 
to promote, reassignment, discipline, 
defamation, harassment [and] humiliation.”

Finding that Hoefer’s suit would not have 
occurred absent his employment at Global 
Caravan, the judge found that his claims fit 
squarely within the exclusion.

“[T]he policy at issue was designed to protect 
[Global Caravan] in suits brought by third 
parties and not suits arising out of internal, 
business-related disagreements,” she 
explained.  WJ

Attorneys:
Plaintiff: David S. Wirth and April C. Tarvin, Staff 
Counsel of the Cincinnati Insurance Company, 
Fairfield, OH; James J. Hutton and Douglas H.  
Fisher, Cincinnati Insurance Company, 
Indianapolis, IN

Defendants: George M. Plews, Jonathan P. 
Emenhiser and Shelley M. Jackson, Plews Shadley  
Racher & Braun, Indianapolis, IN; Charles Russell 
Cox and S. Andrew Burns, Cox, Sargeant & Burns, 
Indianapolis, IN

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 4194520
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WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

Workers’ comp bars widow’s distress claim,  
Connecticut high court rules
A woman who found her husband crushed under a vehicle when she visited him at his job cannot sue for her own  
emotional distress because she received workers’ compensation benefits for his death, Connecticut’s highest court  
has ruled.

Velecela v. All Habitat Services LLC, No. 19589, 2016 WL 4087770 
(Conn. Aug. 9, 2016).

The state Workers’ Compensation Act’s exclusivity provision bars Jenny 
Velecela’s negligent infliction of bystander emotional distress claim, 
the Connecticut Supreme Court said in a unanimous decision affirming 
summary judgment against her.

THE WORKERS’ COMP CLAIM
Austin Irwin was working for All Habitat Services LLC in July 2011 when 
the all-terrain vehicle he was repairing slipped off a lift and killed him, 
according to the high court’s opinion.

Irwin’s wife, Velecela, discovered his body beneath the vehicle when she 
came to All Habitat to bring him his lunch, according to the opinion.

Velecela received $300,000 in workers’ compensation benefits under 
an agreement with All Habitat, the opinion said.

Before resolving the workers’ compensation claim, Velecela also sued 
All Habitat in the New Haven Superior Court for negligent infliction of 
bystander emotional distress.

All Habitat defended the suit by arguing that the exclusivity of the 
state’s WCA, Conn. Gen. Stat. Ann. § 31-275, barred Velecela’s claim, 
according to the opinion.

The Superior Court granted summary judgment to All Habitat, and 
Velecela appealed.

The state Supreme Court explained that the WCA provides the 
exclusive means to resolve claims between employers and employees 
arising out of personal injuries or death that occur during the course of 
employment.

The high court concluded that because Irwin’s death occurred in the 
course of his employment and was compensable under the WCA, 
Velecela’s alleged emotional injuries are barred by the exclusivity 
provision as well.

“Bystander emotional distress, … by its very nature, results from and 
arises out of the underlying personal injury or death,” the Supreme 
Court said.

The high court rejected Velecela’s argument that because bystander 
emotional distress is not compensable under the WCA, it cannot be 
barred by the statute’s exclusivity provision.

“The plaintiff’s claim fails in light of the ‘sweeping language’ of the 
exclusivity provision,” the Supreme Court said.  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 4087770
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LABOR & EMPLOYMENT ROUNDUP

Labor and employment roundup for Aug. 8 – Aug. 19
The following are highlights of recent employment litigation, legislation and enforcement activities.

EEOC LAWSUITS, SETTLEMENTS

Aug. 8 — Real estate firm fired employee with breast cancer,  
EEOC says. The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission filed 
suit in Maryland federal court against commercial real estate firm 
Cushman & Wakefield, alleging it fired an employee who had breast 
cancer after she requested leave for treatments. Senior administrator 
Toi Patterson asked for a continuous leave under the Family and 
Medical Leave Act, 29 U.S.C.A. §  2601, because she was concerned 
her supervisor would not give her intermittent leave for her treatments, 
the suit says. When Patterson asked to come back to work on a part-
time basis and told her supervisor she may need additional time off 
following surgery, the firm refused her request and instead fired her, 
the suit says. The firm’s failure to accommodate Patterson’s illness with 
an adjusted work schedule violated the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
42 U.S.C.A. §  12101, according to the EEOC. Cushman is an affiliate 
of named defendant Cassidy Turley Commercial Real Estate Services. 
EEOC v. Cassidy Turley Commercial Real Estate Servs. Inc., No. 16-cv-
2788, complaint filed (D. Md. Aug. 8, 2016). 2016 WL 4191207

Aug. 12 — Wal-Mart to pay $90,000 for firing disabled employee. 
Wal-Mart Stores Inc. has agreed to pay $90,000 to settle Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission charges that one of its Illinois 
stores discriminated against an employee by firing him because of 
his intellectual disability. According to the EEOC, William Clark had 
worked for Wal-Mart for 18 years before his termination. During much 
of that time, the store accommodated Clark under the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C.A. § 12101, by giving him a daily list of 
tasks. The company stopped provided Clark with the list some time 
in 2011 and then fired him allegedly for not performing his duties, 
the EEOC said. In addition to the monetary payment to Clark, the  
Aug. 10 consent decree settling the suit calls for additional ADA 
training and monitoring to improve the retail giant’s compliance.  
EEOC v. Wal-Mart Stores Inc., No. 14-cv-50145, consent decree approved 
(N.D. Ill. Aug. 10, 2016). 2016 WL 4376202

WAGE-AND-HOUR LAWSUITS, SETTLEMENTS

Aug. 11 — Nonprofit community rehab program loses right to 
underpay workers. A West Virginia nonprofit will no longer be able 
to legally pay subminimum wages to workers with disabilities after the 
U.S. Labor Department revoked its special certificate allowing it to do 
so. The agency said an investigation revealed that the Buckhannon-
Upshur Work Adjustment Center, a community rehabilitation program, 
violated the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C.A. § 201, by failing to 
pay a valid subminimum wage to 12 people with disabilities employed 
to do light assembly work. Under Section 14(c) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C.A. 
§  214(c), employers can obtain a certificate of authorization to pay 
wages below the federal minimum wage to workers with disabilities 
whose productive capacities are impaired. The Labor Department also 

found the center had submitted falsified or inaccurate time studies 
and prevailing wage surveys to achieve Section 14(c) certification 
and failed to perform the requisite wage surveys and time studies. 
The agency revoked the center’s current and previous Section 14(c) 
certificates for Sept. 1, 2012, through Aug. 31, 2016, and imposed civil 
money penalties. The center paid $43,370 in back wages to the 12 light 
assembly workers. The Labor Department also found the center owed 
$4,800 to five workers for violations of the McNamara-O’Hara Service 
Contract Act, 41 U.S.C.A. § 6701, involving prevailing wage and benefit 
rates. 2016 WL 4239278

SAFETY ENFORCEMENT

Aug. 8 — U.S. Steel faces $170,000 in fines for worker asbestos 
exposure. For the second time since 2011, the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration has fined United States Steel Corp. for exposing 
workers to asbestos hazards. Following a March inspection of the U.S. 
Steel facility in Pittsburgh, OSHA fined the company $170,000 for 
events in February and March that together exposed seven workers to 
asbestos. The investigation was prompted by an employee complaint, 
the agency said. During an 2011 investigation of U.S. Steel, OSHA found 
the company had failed to inform workers of the presence of asbestos-
containing materials. 2016 WL 4169154

Aug. 16 — OSHA finds hazards at Tyson Foods plant following 
amputation. The Occupational Safety and Health Administration has 
fined Tyson Foods $263,498 following an inspection that revealed 
numerous hazards, according to a recent statement. The agency 
inspected the meat and poultry processor’s Center, Texas, plant after 
a worker’s finger was severed while he was attempting to remove 
chicken parts from a jammed conveyor belt lacking safety guards.  
The inspection found two repeat and 15 serious violations, including 
Tyson’s failure to ensure that moving machine parts have proper 
safety guards. The agency also found that employees were exposed 
to high levels of carbon dioxide and peracetic acid without protective 
equipment, OSHA said. Inspectors also reportedly found fall hazards 
due to a lack of proper drainage and recessed drains, plus fire hazards 
from improperly stored compressed gas cylinders. 2016 WL 4362421

LEGISLATION

July 29 — Illinois law gives unpaid leave for child’s death. A new 
Illinois law provides workers with up to 10 days of unpaid leave following 
the death of their child. Both houses of the state Legislature passed 
the Child Bereavement Leave Act with nearly unanimous support, and 
Republican Gov. Bruce Rauner signed the bill July 29. The law became 
effective immediately. An employee can use the time to grieve a death, 
to make arrangements following the death, and to attend the funeral 
of his or her biological, adopted, foster or step child, or a legal ward.  
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Like the federal Family and Medical Leave Act, the Illinois law applies to 
employers with 50 or more workers and employees who have worked 
for at least 12 months. If more than one child dies within the same year, 
an employee can take up to six weeks of bereavement time, the law 
says. The law mandates that the worker give an employer 48 hours of 
advance notice of a leave if such a notice is reasonable and allows an 
employer to require documentation, such as a death certificate.

Aug. 12 — Domestic Workers’ Bill of Rights becomes law in Illinois. 
Illinois’ new Domestic Workers’ Bill of Rights protects domestic servants 
who work in private homes from discrimination by removing exclusions 
for such workers from the state’s Human Rights Act. Republican Gov. 
Bruce Rauner signed the bill Aug. 12. It becomes effective Jan. 1, 2017. 
The law defines domestic workers to include housekeepers, nannies, 
cooks, chauffeurs and personal companions. The law also amends the 
state’s minimum-wage law to include domestic workers. The workers 
also will now be protected by Illinois’ “One Day of Rest in Seven” 
act because employers will have to allow domestic workers at least  
24 consecutive hours of rest per week and, if a worker voluntarily works 
on a day of rest, he or she must receive overtime compensation.

Aug. 3 — San Diego amends new sick-leave law. Two months after 
voters in San Diego approved the Earned Sick Leave and Minimum 
Wage ordinance, the city council has passed amendments to create 
a system for receiving and resolving complaints under the law and to 
require employers to review policies and procedures. The law, which 
went into effect July 11, requires employers to pay workers at least 
$10.50 per hour. The base minimum wage increases to $11.50 an 
hour beginning Jan. 1, 2017. As of 2019, minimum-wage increases will 
be tied to the consumer price index. The law also requires paid sick 
leave for workers. The new amendments, which go into effect Sept. 2, 
allow employers to cap accrued sick leave at 80 hours per year. Under 
the amendment’s enforcement process, written complaints must be 
filed with the city treasurer within two years of an alleged violation 
and administrative remedies need not be exhausted before a private 
lawsuit can be filed.

OTHER AGENCY ACTIONS

Aug. 10 — Firm settles with SEC over severance agreements that 
could “chill” whistleblowing. An Atlanta-based building products 
distributor has agreed to pay $265,000 to resolve Securities and 
Exchange Commission charges that it had departing employees sign 
severance agreements in which they waived their rights to monetary 
awards if they prevailed on a charge filed with the agency. The SEC 
alleged BlueLinx Holdings Inc. violated Exchange Act Rule 21F-17,  
17 C.F.R. §  240.21F–17, which bars actions to prevent someone 
from communicating with the agency about possible securities 
law violations. BlueLinx did not admit or deny the SEC’s findings 
but consented to a cease-and-desist order, agreeing to modify its 
severance agreements to clarify that employees may report possible 
securities law violations to federal agencies without the firm’s consent 
and without having to forfeit any possible award. The company also 
said it would try to contact ex-employees who signed such agreements 
to inform them that BlueLinx does not bar former employees from 
giving the SEC information or accepting SEC whistleblower awards. 
BlueLinx Holdings Inc., Exchange Act Release No. 78528 (Aug. 10, 
2016). 2016 WL 4204559

Aug. 16 — SEC punishes another firm for illegal severance 
agreements. A California-based health insurance provider will pay 
$340,000 to settle Securities and Exchange Commission charges 
it used severance agreements that required exiting employees to 
waive their rights to monetary awards if they prevailed on an SEC 
whistleblower charge, according to a recent statement. The agency 
alleged the Health Net severance agreements violate Exchange Act 
Rule 21F-17, 17 C.F.R. §  240.21F–17, which bars actions to prevent 
someone from communicating with the agency about possible 
securities law violations. According to the statement, Health Net did 
not admit or deny the SEC’s findings but consented to a cease-and-
desist order, agreeing to modify its severance agreements and contact 
ex-employees who signed such agreements. Health Net Inc., S.E.C. 
Release No. 78590 (Aug. 16, 2016). 2016 WL 4361950

LABOR & EMPLOYMENT ROUNDUP
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RECENTLY FILED COMPLAINTS FROM WESTLAW COURT WIRE*

*Westlaw Court Wire is a Thomson Reuters news service that provides notice of new complaints filed in state and federal courts nationwide, 
sometimes within minutes of the filing.

Case Name Court Docket #
Filing 
Date

Allegations Damages Sought

Perkins v. BW Pier 
Point Inn LLC

D. Or. 16-cv-1476 7/20/16
The BW Pier Point Inn paid its general 
manager substantially less than it paid her 
male predecessor.

Economic, compensatory, 
liquidated and punitive 
damages; fees; and costs

Andrews v. Pacific 
Process Systems 
Inc.

W.D. Pa. 16-cv-1135 7/28/16

Class action. Pacific Process Systems breached 
its settlement agreement with employees by 
failing to pay the outstanding amounts due 
as unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated 
damages and attorney fees.

Class certification, 
damages, interest, fees 
and costs

Norris v. City of 
Portland

D. Me. 16-cv-390 7/28/16

The City of Portland fired an administrator 
based on her gender and because she 
requested an accommodation just days after 
she told her supervisor she was pregnant.

Compensatory, civil penal 
and nominal damages; 
front and back pay; 
benefits reimbursement; 
interest; fees; and costs

Veloz v. Sears, 
Roebuck & Co. 
2016 WL 4239508

C.D. Cal. 16-cv-5982 8/10/16

Removed from the Los Angeles County 
Superior Court Case No: BC620880. Sears, 
Roebuck & Co. discriminated against plaintiff 
based on age and disability by terminating 
him in retaliation for requesting a reasonable 
accommodation.

$10 million in general, 
special, actual, nominal, 
compensatory and 
punitive damages; civil 
penalties; interest; costs; 
and fees

Perez v. Makin’ 
Choices Inc. 
2016 WL 4417180

M.D.N.C. 16-cv-1065 8/17/16

Makin’ Choices, a mental health and therapy 
service provider in Durham, North Carolina, 
paid back wages to employees under a 
settlement of wage-and-hour claims with 
the Department of Labor then retaliated by 
demanding that at least two workers return 
the money and reducing their pay when they 
refused. 

Back wages due, punitive 
and liquidated damages, 
and declaratory and 
injunctive relief

Burnett v. 
Wahlburgers 
Franchising LLC 
2016 WL 4417182

E.D.N.Y. 16-cv-4602 8/18/16

Class action. Wahlburgers in Coney Island 
and its franchisee have failed to pay workers 
minimum wages and overtime compensation, 
misappropriated tips and failed to keep 
accurate records of hours worked in violation of 
federal and state labor laws. 

Class certification, 
compensatory and 
liquidated damages, 
declaratory and injunctive 
relief, interest, fees, and 
costs

Tantaros v. Fox 
News Network LL 
2016 WL 4435146

N.Y. Sup. Ct. 
(N.Y. Cty.)

157054/2016 8/22/16

A former co-host of the Fox News show The 
Five alleges Fox News Network operates 
like a “sex-fueled, Playboy Mansion-like 
cult, steeped in intimidation, indecency, 
and misogyny,” and retaliated against her 
for complaining about sexual harassment 
allegedly committed against her by the 
network’s then-president Roger Ailes.

Punitive damages, 
damages for lost income 
and mental anguish,  
and attorney fees
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LABOR AND PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT NEWS

PENNSYLVANIA HIGHER ED SYSTEM MUST BARGAIN 
DISCIPLINARY COMPONENTS OF BACKGROUND CHECK, 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

Ruling: A Pennsylvania Labor Relations Board hearing examiner 
concluded the Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education 
violated Section 1201(a)(1) and (5) of the Public Employee Relations Act 
because its unilaterally implemented background check, certification 
and reporting requirements went beyond what was required by Act 153 
of 2014, which amended the state’s Child Protective Services Law. The 
hearing examiner rejected the employer’s defenses of untimeliness 
and managerial prerogative, noting that the union filed the charge 
within four months of when it learned the SSHE implemented the 
draft procedures relating to the policy changes in question. Moreover, 
insofar as those changes instituted new grounds for discipline, the 
changes involved a mandatory subject of bargaining, the hearing 
examiner determined. 

What it means: The hearing examiner explained that the State System 
of Higher Education acted within its managerial prerogative when it 
implemented policies that matched what was directed by Act 153 of 
2014 to cover “school employees not governed by the provisions of 
the Public School Code of 1949.” However, the SSHE failed to bargain 
the new grounds for discipline contained in the unilaterally imposed 
policies.

State College & University Professional Association, PSEA/NEA v. 
Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education, 48 PPER 15 (Pa. 
Labor Relations Bd. H. Exam’r Aug. 2, 2016).

PENNSYLVANIA CORRECTIONS DEPARTMENT  
VIOLATES SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BY FAILING  
TO GIVE NEUTRAL RECOMMENDATION

Ruling: The Pennsylvania Department of Corrections violated the 
terms of a settlement agreement when it failed to provide a neutral 
employment reference for a former employee that applied for a job as 
a Police Communications Officer with the Pennsylvania State Police, 
a Pennsylvania Labor Relations Board hearing examiner determined. 

What it means: The hearing examiner explained that contrary to the 
terms of the parties’ settlement agreement and release, which explicitly 
stated the employer agreed to provide a neutral recommendation 
regarding the employee’s former employment with the DOC, an 
employer representative gave a thoroughly negative recommendation 
to a prospective employer. In particular, the representative advised 
the prospective employer that the former employee’s quality of work, 
attendance, punctuality, dependability and her relationship with 
coworkers’ was unsatisfactory. 

Correctional Institution Vocational Education Association, PSEA/
NEA v. Pennsylvania Department of Corrections, 48 PPER 16 (Pa. 
Labor Relations Bd. H. Exam’r Aug. 4, 2016).

APPEALS COURT COMPELS RETIREMENT SYSTEM  
TO ACCEPT BACK PAY PENSION CONTRIBUTION

Ruling: The Ohio Court of Appeals affirmed the determination of a trial 
court, which granted summary judgment in favor of the relator and 
issued a writ of mandamus compelling the State Teachers Retirement 
System to accept a retirement contribution that included back pay 
in the pension calculation of a former employee of the Toledo Public 
Schools. The back pay stemmed from a settlement agreement of the 
employee’s termination and race discrimination claims in which she 
agreed to retire immediately upon her reinstatement. 

What it means: Although the STRS contended the submitted 
contribution was not “compensation” as defined under state law, Ohio 
Rev. Code § 3307.1(L)(2)(k), the appellate court explained that the trial 
court applied the proper standard of proof in finding that the relator 
established by “clear and convincing evidence, a clear legal right to 
have her back pay included in her pension calculation.” 

State ex rel. Todd v. State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio et al., 
34 OPER 10 (Ohio Ct. App. July 22, 2016).

CHEMIST’S PUBLIC ‘OUTBURST’ TOWARD SUPERVISOR 
ISN’T STATUTORILY PROTECTED

Ruling: The Michigan Employment Relations Commission adopted 
an administrative law judge’s recommended dismissal of an unfair-
labor-practice charge. The ALJ rejected the union’s contention that 
the municipal employer violated Public Employment Relations Act 
provisions by disciplining a water systems chemist who challenged 
the performance of bargaining unit work by a supervisor. The ALJ 
decided that the union did not establish a prima facie case of unlawful 
discrimination under PERA Section 10(1)(c), absent evidence of 
anti-union animus toward the chemist’s protected activity. The ALJ 
concluded that the chemist’s outburst toward the supervisor was not 
statutorily protected because the outburst took place within earshot 
and view of other employees and because the supervisor neither 
initiated nor agreed to the conversation that led to the outburst. 

What it means: The ALJ noted that, pursuant to MERC case 
law, misconduct in the course of concerted activity, including 
insubordination, is not immune from discipline.

Detroit Department of Water & Sewerage and Sanitary Chemists and 
Technicians Association, 30 MPER 9 (Mich. Employment Relations 
Comm’n July 8, 2016).

COURT RULES TERMINATION OF TEACHER RESULTS 
FROM MISCONDUCT, NOT ANTI-UNION ANIMUS

Ruling: In a nonprecedential Rule 23 decision, the Illinois Appellate 
Court, 1st Judicial District affirmed the Illinois Educational Labor 
Relations Board’s dismissal of an unfair-labor-practice charge. In 
that charge, a physical education teacher disputed his termination by 
the school employer after he engaged in a physical altercation with 
a student. Although the employer was aware of the teacher’s union 
activity, the court found, the charge had no merit absent evidence that 
the teacher’s termination was prompted by antiunion animus.
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What it means: The appeals court explained that anti-union motivation 
may be inferred from various factors, including an employer’s expressed 
hostility toward unionization, together with knowledge of the 
employee’s union activities; proximity in time between the employee’s 
union activities and his or her discharge; and shifting explanations for 
the discharge. 

Green v. Illinois Educational Labor Relations Board et al., 33 PERI 19 
(Ill. App. Ct., 1st Dist. July 15, 2016).

COLLEGE IMPROPERLY FLOUTS SETTLEMENT 
AGREEMENT, NIXES IMPACT BARGAINING

Ruling: In a nonprecedential Rule 23 decision, the Illinois Appellate 
Court, 1st Judicial District upheld the Illinois Educational Labor 
Relations Board’s ruling that an educational employer violated 

Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act Sections 14(a)(1) and (a)(5) 
by failing to comply with the terms of a grievance settlement and by 
failing to engage in impact bargaining over implementation of a new 
time reporting system. The IELRB properly rejected the employer’s 
contention that the parties’ bargaining agreement added only titles — 
not employees — to the bargaining unit, the court decided. 

What it means: In considering the enforceability of the parties’ 
settlement agreement, the court noted that the primary goal in 
interpreting a contract is to give effect to the parties’ intent and 
consider the contract as a whole. 

Board of Trustees of Community College District 508 v. Illinois 
Educational Labor Relations Board et al., 33 PERI 20 (Ill. App. Ct., 
1st Dist. July 20, 2016).
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proposed amount was well below the total 
potential damages in the case of roughly 
$850 million.

In a statement, Uber said it believed the 
settlement was fair and reasonable.

“We’re disappointed in this decision and are 
taking a look at our options,” the company 
said.

Judge Chen noted that part of the proposed 
settlement, $16 million, would only have 
been paid to drivers if Uber’s valuation grew 
by a certain benchmark within a year of any 
initial public offering.

Because Uber could not provide specific 
information that such an outcome was likely, 
Judge Chen said he would not consider 
those dollars as part of the settlement.  

Uber
CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

Several drivers filed objections because the proposed 
settlement amount was well below the total potential  

damages in the case of roughly $850 million.

The remaining $84 million, Judge Chen said, 
represented a “substantial discount” on the 
full value of driver claims.

“But if not, as I’ve said before, I will take the 
case to trial and fight my hardest for the  
Uber drivers,” she said.

However, Liss-Riordan said, if there is no 
settlement agreement, the number of drivers 
included in the case would drop to about 
8,000, because many drivers did not opt out 
of the arbitration clause in Uber’s licensing 
agreement.  WJ

(Reporting by Dan Levine and Heather 
Somerville)

Related Court Document: 
Order: 2016 WL 4398271

Among Judge Chen’s primary concerns 
were claims related to the Private Attorney 
General Act, Cal. Lab. Code §  2698, which 
could come with penalties far exceeding the 
$1 million the settlement allowed. PAGA, 
passed in California in 2004, states that 
individuals may pursue civil penalties for 
labor code violations, and share any payment 
recovered with the state.

Both parties could reach a new agreement 
that satisfies the judge’s concerns, said 
Shannon Liss-Riordan, the attorney 
representing the drivers.
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AVON SETTLES OVERTIME CLASS ACTION  
FOR $1.8 MILLION

Avon Products Inc. has agreed to pay $1.8 million to settle claims the 
cosmetic company failed to pay its district sales managers overtime 
wages. The workers, who are responsible for recruiting representatives 
to sell the company’s goods, filed the suit in 2013 alleging Avon 
misclassified them as exempt from overtime compensation under 
the California Labor Code. The workers maintained they are not in 
management positions and should be paid 1.5 times their usual hourly 
rate for time worked in excess of 40 hours per week. U.S. District Judge 
Beth Labson Freeman of the Northern District of California certified 
a statewide class of nearly 200 workers in April 2015. According to 
the plaintiffs’ motion seeking court approval of the settlement, the  
$1.8 million settlement includes payment of up to $670,000 in 
attorney fees and costs, awards to individual named plaintiffs ranging 
from $5,000 to $10,000 each and a $10,000 statutory penalty.

Nelson et al. v. Avon Products Inc. et al., No. 13-cv-2276, motion for 
preliminary approval filed (N.D. Cal., San Jose Div. Aug. 18, 2016).

NOVARTIS UNIT’S $8 MILLION GENDER DISCRIMINATION 
SETTLEMENT APPROVED

A Manhattan federal judge has given preliminary approval to an 
agreement between Alcon Laboratories Inc. and various groups of 
female employees who say the Fort Worth, Texas-based drugmaker 
denied them equal pay and promotion opportunities. Alcon is the eye 
care division of Swiss pharmaceutical giant Novartis Corp. The women 
sued Novartis and Alcon in March 2015 alleging the companies’ “boy’s 
club atmosphere” is hostile to women and bars them from leadership 
positions, in violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,  
42 U.S.C.A. §  2000e, which prohibits gender discrimination by 

employers, and the Equal Pay Act, 29 U.S.C.A. § 206(d). The defendants 
denied the allegations but agreed to pay $8 million to be divided 
among four certified classes of employees, including directors and sales 
associates. The settlement amount includes an aggregate $110,000 for 
individual awards to 13 plaintiffs who served as class representatives, 
and $2.96 million in attorney fees and expenses, according to court 
filings. A final approval hearing for the settlement will be held Dec. 2. 

Orr et al. v. Novartis Corp. et al., No. 15-cv-1980, preliminary 
approval granted (S.D.N.Y. Aug. 3, 2016).

ULTA SETTLES STORE MANAGERS’ OVERTIME  
CLASS ACTION FOR $3.6 MILLION

Ulta Salon, Cosmetics and Fragrance Inc. has agreed to pay  
$3.65 million to settle claims that the nation’s largest beauty 
products retailer forces its store managers to work overtime hours 
without compensation. Three store managers filed the class action 
in September 2015 in San Francisco federal court, alleging they were 
misclassified as exempt from overtime even though they had no 
managerial authority. Ulta stores function under an “excessively lean 
staffing model,” which forces managers to perform tasks normally done 
by cashiers and other workers, the suit said. The settlement pact covers 
about 230 current and former managers employed since September 
2011 in the company’s California stores, according to the plaintiffs’ 
motion seeking court approval of the deal. The settlement amount 
includes up to $912,000 in attorney fees and costs, $10,000 awards for 
each of the three individually named plaintiffs, and a $75,000 statutory 
penalty.

Quinby et al. v. Ulta Salon, Cosmetics and Fragrance Inc., No. 15-cv-
4099, motion for preliminary approval filed (N.D. Cal., S.F. Div.  
Aug. 5, 2016).
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